






 

City   of   Mission  Item   Number:  1. 

ACTION   ITEM   SUMMARY  Date:  May   11,   2017 

Administration  From:  Laura   Smith 
Action   items   require   a   vote   to   recommend   the   item   to   full   City   Council   for   further   action. 
 

RE:    Charter   Ordinance   Related   to   Primary   Elections   in   the   City   of   Mission 
 
RECOMMENDATION:    Adopt   Charter   Ordinance   31   to   trigger   a   primary   election   when   there   are 
more   than   two   (2)   candidates   who   have   filed   for   an   office. 
 
DETAILS:    After   a   third   candidate   filed   for   the   Ward   IV   council   position   last   week,   we   received   a 
call   from   the   Johnson   County   Election   Office   with   questions   regarding   our   current   code 
provisions   related   to   primary   elections.   In   reviewing   our   codes,   the   Election   Office   staff   was 
unable   to   find   language   that   specified   a   primary   was   triggered   whenever   more   than    two   (2) 
candidates   filed   for   the   same   position,   therefore   they   believed   we   would   be   subject   to   the 
provisions   of   K.S.A.   25­2108a   (b)   which   reads   as   follows: 
 

“In   cities   in   which   a   district   method   of   election   is   in   effect,   if   there 
are   more   than   three   qualified   candidates   for   any   member   district, 
the   county   election   officer   shall   call,   and   there   shall   be   held,   a 
primary   election   in   each   such   member   district.   The   names   of   the 
two   candidates   receiving   the   greatest   number   of   votes   for   any 
such   member   district   at   the   primary   election   shall   appear   on   the 
ballots   in   the   general   election.   If   there   are   three   or   fewer   qualified 
candidates   for   any   member   district   there   shall   not   be   a   primary 
election   and   the   names   of   the   candidates   shall   be   placed   on   the 
ballots   in   the   general   election.” 

 
Their   questions   prompted   an   internal   review,   and   staff   confirmed   that   when   we   transitioned   to 
November   elections   in   odd­years   via   Charter   Ordinance   27   (October   21,   2015),   we   also 
repealed   Charter   Ordinance   23,   which   outlined   Mission’s   requirements   for   primary   elections. 
Direction   provided   by   the   League   of   Kansas   Municipalities   at   that   time   (see   highlights   in 
attached   article)   specified   that   because   the   statutory   election   provisions   were   made   uniform, 
any   charter   ordinances   which   existed   were   repealed. 
 
However,   as   we   researched   the   matter   further,   including   conversations   with   the   League,   we 
determined   that   the   majority   of   cities   in   Johnson   County   who   elect   Council­members   by   district 
have,   in   fact,   chartered   out   from   the   provisions   of   K.S.A.   25­2101    et.   seq. ,   specifically   K.S.A. 
12­2108a,   to   trigger   a   primary   in   the   event   there   are   more   than   two   (2)   candidates   for   any   office. 
The   table   below   summarizes   those   cities   who   currently   require   a   primary   election   when   there 
are   more   than   two   (2)   candidates: 
 

 

Related   Statute/City   Ordinance:  Mission   Municipal   Code   Chapter   110,   Article   I 

Line   Item   Code/Description:  NA 

Available   Budget:  NA 
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City  Primary   =   More   than 
2   candidates 

Primary   =   More   than 
3   candidates 

Bonner   Springs    X 

Fairway  X   

Leawood    X 

Lenexa  X   

Merriam  X   

Mission    X 

Olathe  X   

Overland   Park  X   

Prairie   Village  X   

Roeland   Park  X   

Shawnee  X   

 
Therefore,   it   seems   returning   to   the   previous   practice   of   holding   a   primary   election   when   more 
than   two   (2)   candidates   have   filed,    is    an   option   for   Mission.     Staff   has   drafted   a   charter 
ordinance   which   would   lower   the   threshold   for   a   primary   from   “more   than   three   candidates”   to 
“more   than   two   candidates.   ”This   takes   us   back   to   our   previous   position,   allows   for   one 
candidate   in   the   general   election   to   clearly   win   a   majority   of   the   vote,   and   maintains   more 
consistency   with   other   cities   in   Johnson   County.   The   greatest   benefit   of   leaving   things   as   they 
are   is   that   Mission   could   avoid   the   expense   of   a   primary   election.   Primary   costs   can   be   difficult 
to   predict,   but   in   Mission,   could   be   expected   to   range   from   a   low   of   approximately   $5,000   to 
between   $8,000   ­   $10,000   depending   on   the   number   of   wards   impacted. 
 
Staff   requested   this   issue   be   considered   at   a   special   meeting   because   we   have   a   narrow 
window   to   consider   options   in   order   for   any   changes   to   be   in   place   prior   to   the   August   1st 
primary.   Passage   of   a   charter   ordinance   requires   a   ⅔   vote   of   the   Governing   Body   (6   votes).   The 
Mayor   votes   in   the   case   of   a   charter   ordinance.   The   charter   ordinance   becomes   effective   61 
days   after   its   second   publication   unless   there   is   a   public   petition   for   a   referendum   on   this   issue. 

 

Related   Statute/City   Ordinance:  Mission   Municipal   Code   Chapter   110,   Article   I 

Line   Item   Code/Description:  NA 

Available   Budget:  NA 
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A   charter   ordinance   modifying   the   requirements   for   primary   elections   in   Mission   is   attached.   The 
Council’s   options   and   alternatives   are   outlined   briefly   below: 
 
Option   1   ­   Do   nothing 
 
If   the   Council   takes   no   action,   there   would   only   be   a   primary   election   if   more   than   three   (3) 
candidates   filed   for   any   position.   Currently,   this   only   impacts   Ward   IV,   where   three   candidates 
have   filed.   If   we   do   nothing,   all   three   candidate’s   names   would   appear   on   the   November   2017 
General   Election   ballot.   Assuming   no   additional   filings,   this   would   save   us   the   cost   of   the 
primary   election   in   2017   (approximately   $5,000   for   one   ward). 
 
Option   2   ­   Do   nothing   now   and   consider   revisions   for   future   election 
 
The   Council   could   decide   to   take   no   action   at   this   time,   advancing   three   candidates   to   the 
general   election   and   then   consider   a   charter   ordinance   to   make   a   change   in   future   elections. 
Assuming   no   additional   filings,   this   would   save   us   the   cost   of   the   primary   election   in   2017 
(approximately   $5,000   for   one   ward). 
 
Option   3   ­   Adopt   a   charter   ordinance   to   trigger   a   primary   when   there   are   more   than   two 
candidates 
 
The   Council   could   adopt   a   Charter   ordinance   lowering   the   threshold   to   trigger   a   primary   election 
when   more   than   two   candidates   file   for   any   position.   This   would   return   us   to   the   previous 
practice   and   be   more   in   line   with   other   surrounding   cities   in   Johnson   County.   Because   a   charter 
ordinance   is   not   effective   until   61   days   after   its   second   publication,   we   have   a   limited   window 
within   which   to   consider   this   option. 
 
If   you   have   questions   prior   to   tonight’s   meeting,   please   do   not   hesitate   to   contact   me. 
 
 

 

Related   Statute/City   Ordinance:  Mission   Municipal   Code   Chapter   110,   Article   I 

Line   Item   Code/Description:  NA 

Available   Budget:  NA 

 











CHARTER   ORDINANCE   NO.   31 
 
A   CHARTER   ORDINANCE   EXEMPTING   THE   CITY   OF   MISSION,   KANSAS   FROM   THE 
PROVISIONS   OF   K.S.A.   25­2108a   RELATING   TO   PRIMARY   ELECTIONS   FOR   MAYOR   AND 
CITY   COUNCIL   MEMBERS,   AND   PROVIDING   SUBSTITUTE   PROVISIONS   THEREFORE. 
 

NOW,   THEREFORE   BE   IT   ORDAINED   BY   THE   GOVERNING   BODY   OF   THE   CITY   OF 
MISSION,   KANSAS: 
 
Section   1.       The   City   of   Mission,   Kansas,   pursuant   to   Article   12,   Section   5   of   the   Constitution   of 
the   State   of   Kansas,   elects   to   exempt   itself   from   the   applicability   of   the   provisions   of   K.S.A. 
25­2108a,   which   do   not   apply   uniformly   to   all   cities.   The   City   of   Mission,   KS   provides   substitute 
provision   on   the   same   subject   as   hereinafter   provided. 
 
Section   2.       PRIMARY   CITY   ELECTIONS 

A. A primary election shall be held on the first Tuesday in August of odd­numbered                           
years if needed to reduce the number of candidates for each office in the general                             
election to no more than two (2) candidates. The two (2) candidates receiving the                           
greatest   number   of   votes   for   each   office   shall   advance   to   the   general   election. 

B. In the event there are not more than two (2) candidates for any one office, there shall                                 
be no primary election and the names of such candidates shall be placed on the                             
general   City   election   ballot. 

Section 3. This Charter Ordinance shall be published once a week for two (2) consecutive                               
weeks   in   the   official   city   newspaper. 

Section 4. This Charter Ordinance shall take effect sixty­one (61) days after its final publication                             
unless a Petition for Referendum is filed and a referendum held on this Charter Ordinance as                               
provided in Article 12, Section 5, Subsection (c)(3) of the Constitution of the State of Kansas, in                                 
which case this Charter Ordinance shall become effective if approved by the majority of electors                             
voting. 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY of the City of Mission,                       
Kansas, by not less than two­thirds of the members elect voting in favor thereof this 11th day of                                   
May,   2017. 

APPROVED   BY   THE   MAYOR   this   11th   day   of   May,   2017. 

________________________________ 
Steve   Schowengerdt,   Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Martha   Sumrall,   City   Clerk 
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